
 
 
  
 
 
August 8, 2011 
 
Oregon Public Utilities Commission 
550 Capitol Street NE #215 
PO Box 2148 
Salem, OR  97308-2148 
 
Re: Request for Waiver of the 12-Month Installation Requirement Pursuant to OAR 860-

084-0210(1) 
 
Dear Commission: 
 
This is a request for waiver of the 12-month installation requirement pursuant to OAR 860-084-
0210(1) for reasons relating to building construction roof defects at the place of the intended 
installation.  For the reasons stated below, the City believes that a 3-month extension will allow 
the City to follow public contracting laws and to install the photovoltaic solar system; and that 
the waiver is in conformance with OAR 860-084-000(3), which allows waiver of any of the rules 
relating to Solar Photovoltaic Pilot Programs, for good cause.  
 
In June 2009, the City commenced an extensive remodel of the Police Station located at 2501 
Shasta Way, Klamath Falls, Oregon 97601.  As part of this remodel, the City replaced the roof at 
the Police Station.  Pursuant to state law, the City must spend about $80,000 on photovoltaic 
solar system, which represents 1.5% of the original construction contract for remodeling the 
Police Department building. 
 
Anticipating that the City would install a PC solar system on the building, the City worked with a 
third-party financing company and Oregon solar installer AES, to finance three different City 
locations. The third-party financing company sought to work with other public entities in 
Oregon, and to present the package of multiple solar facilities for investors to finance.  Without 
the City’s knowledge, AES submitted a Feed-In Tariff application for the City and the City was 
awarded an allocation of 72-kilowatts (see attached application).  The City was thrilled to be 
awarded the allocation; however, after working with the third-party financer for over two years, 
the financing company was unable to secure financing in a timely and satisfactory manner for the 
City.   Rather than financing three locations, the City decided to move forward only with the 
Police Station project because of the Feed-In Tariff allocation and reduce the project to the 
amount required by state law.  The City recognizes that by reducing the project, it will utilize 
less than the 72 kilowatts awarded and the City willingly releases 57 kilowatts, which is the 
amount above the estimated system of 15 kilowatts.   
 
During this past winter, the City discovered that there was moisture trapped in the remodeled 
roof membrane. In order to ensure that the photovoltaic solar system would not interfere with the 
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investigation and remedy of the roof and that the City would not have to reinstall any solar 
facility, the City chose to assess the roof before moving forward with the solar facility.  After 
lengthy negotiations with the construction contractor, the City hired a consultant to determine the 
source, cause and remedy for the moisture in the roof.  A copy of the consultant’s memo is 
attached.  As a result, the parties agreed to install temporary vents in the roof to dry out the 
trapped moisture during the summer. These vents conflict with the installation of solar panels 
because of the proposed solar panel design (see attached design).  It is anticipated that the 
temporary vents will be removed and the roof will be patched in mid-August 2011.  Final 
completion of the remodel is pending the results of the vents, which are expected to be 
successful.    
 
As you are aware as a public entity, the City is required to follow Oregon public contracting law 
and needs significantly more lead time than a private industry to solicit and award contracts.  For 
example, rather than an authorized manager awarding the contract, the City’s Council, at a public 
meeting held only twice a month, must award contracts that exceed $20,000.  The City 
anticipates that it will be able to solicit and install the solar facility on the intended building of 
the Police Building by January 5, 2012. 
 
On Monday August 8, 2011, the City will release a solicitation for construction of the PV Solar 
Facility and will be seeking quotes for the Police Station building.  A copy of the solicitation is 
attached.  We understand that since the roof will not be patched by the date of release of this 
solicitation, that the adjacent garage facility may not be acceptable as an alternative site for a 
solar facility, and that some of the equipment needed for the solar facility may need two months 
of lead time to order, it may not be possible to construct the solar facility before October 5, 2011.  
 
From the inception of the remodel, the City has planned to install a solar facility and has made 
considerable progress in the design and engineering of the solar facility.  This 3-month extension 
is requested only because of a factor outside the City’s control, which required multiple agencies 
(architects, engineers, contractor, roofing subcontractor, roofing manufacturer, City project 
manager, and roofing consultant) to work together to diagnose and agree on a remedy, so that we 
may conclude our construction of the building before installing the solar facility.  
 
Based on the reasons stated above, the City requests the waiver in conformance with OAR 860-
084-000(3), that allows the Commission to grant a waiver of the 12-month installation 
requirement for good cause.   
 
Thank you for your consideration and should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to 
contact us at 541-883-5323. 
 
Sincerely, 
        
/s/ Rick Whitlock  /s/ Joanna Lyons-Antley   
     City Manager                  City Attorney     
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